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1. RName

historic  Greenbelt Historic District

and/or common 014 Greenbelt

2. Location :

Just north of the intersections of the Baltimore-

street & number Washington Parkway, and the Capital Beltway __ not for publication
city, town Greenbelt ____ vicinity of congressional district Fifth
state Maryland code <24 county Prince George's code
3. Classification
Category Ownership Status Present Use
__X district ___ public X occupied —_ agriculture —_ museum
.— building(s) . private —— unoccupied X commercial X__ park
—— structure X _ both —— work in progress X— educational X— private residence
- site Public Acquisition Accessible — entertainment X— religious
- object —in process ——yes: restricted X__ government —_ scientific
— being considered —X_ yes: unrestricted — industrial —_ transportation
— no — military —_other:

4. Owner of Property

name M_u]tjpe] p]]b] jc and prj]zate

street & number

city, town — vicinity of state

5. Location of Legal Description

courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Prince George's County Courthouse

street & number

city, town Upper Marlboro state Maryland 20870
6. Representation in Existing Surveys

titie has this property been determined elegible? X yes ____no

date — federal ___state __county ___ local

depository for survey records

city, town state
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ACREAGE AND BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION

The Greenbelt Historic District covers 789.05 acres of land. The boundaries
of this district are drawn so as to include those areas of the City of Greenbelt
which directly relate to the establishement and expansion of the planned community
between 1935 and 1941 when the district acquired significance and to exclude the more
recently developed parcels and roadways while utilizing such lines of convenience
as the city limits on the north; a major physical and visual barrier, the Baltimore-
Washington Parkway, on the east; and property lines on the south and west.

Included in the Greenbelt Historic District are three discontiguous parcels to
the west of the district proper. These parcels, described below, are included in
the district because of their historical linkage to the period when the district
achieved significance but are made discontiguous by major highway systems and recent
development between them and the district proper. The discontiguous parcels are:

Greenbelt Junior High School (33.86 acres)
Bounded by Breezewood Drive on the north, Edmonston Road on the east,

- Greenbelt Road on the south, and Beltway Plaza on the west, this school was
campleted in 1938 as part of the original construction of Greenbelt and was
situated about a mile from the commerical center so that it would be equidistant
fram both Greenbelt and the town of Berwyn Heights to the west.

Greenbelt City Cemetary (3.1 acres)

Located north of Ivy Land (extended) to the west of Maryland Route 201 and
surrounded completely by private land, this cemetary was formed around an
extisting burial plot.

Indian Springs (a city park, 3 acres)
Indian Springs is south of Greenbelt Lake and is bordered on the north by the
highway ramp leading from Kenilworth Avenue northbound to the Capital Beltway
(I-95) southbound. It is surrounded on the other three sides by private land
currently under development. The three springs are on a hillside shaded by
trees. The springs purportedly were a meeting place for local Indians, thus the
name Indian Springs. Originally a part of Greenbelt Lake Park, the springs
parcel was separated from the park by construction of the Capital Beltway.

In addition to structures and their immediate surroundings, the Greenbelt Historic
District also includes numerous municipal parks scattered amoung the built areas, the
Greenbelt Lake Park which was developed in 1938 and contains 62.1 acres, and four
parcels of undeveloped land in the northeast section totally 174.9 acres which is
all that remains of the original "green belt" that once commpletely surrounded the




7. Description P& 67-Y

Com;lition Check one Check one
— excellient ____deteriorated __ unaltered X __ original site
X_good ____ruins X _ altered —__ moved date
— fair ___ unexposed

Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance

Greenbelt is an incorporated city in Northern Prince George's County, Maryland.
It is located at the intersection of I-95 (the Capital Beltway) and the
Baltimore-Washington Parkway.

The town (city) charter was granted by the Maryland State Legislature in
June, 1937, three months before the first residents moved in. Greenbelt was
the first municipality in Maryland to have the council-manager form of
government.

Originally conceived during the New Deal initiatives of the Roosevelt admin-
istration, the projects sought to create jobs as well as to demonstrate the
applicability of certain garden-city planning techniques to a project de-
signed for low-income residents. The late Rexford Guy Tugwell was the
"father of Greenbelt" as director of the Resettlement Administration during
the early years of the Roosevelt Presidency. Frederick Bigger was in

charge of the planning staff for the green towns. Bigger "believed that
each town should be a distinct experiment--that new ideas and new approaches
should be given the maximum possible opportunity to develop."l

~ -eenbelt's location along major roads, 13 miles from the nation's capital,
nas placed enormous pressures on the community to expand. Much of the orig-
inal belt of green has given way to shopping centers, garden apartments,
single family homes, and condominiums. The population of Greenbelt has
grown from 3,000:in-1937 to:7,000 in 1950, to approximately 20,000 today.

THE PLANNING -OF A GARDEN COMMUNITY U

Before selecting the sites for the "greenbelt towns, " the federal govern-
ment conducted detailed studies of the social and economic growth, wages,
labor practices, accessibility to employment, topography, fertility of
soil, presence of wooded areas for parks and recreation, and availability
of low-priced land.

The rolling farmland in the Washington suburbs ideally met all of these
criteria. The building of historic Greenbelt took -advantage of the natural
topography in the form of a crescent-shaped plateau:

The town is formed in the shape of a graceful crescent set on

a vast background of green. . . . the essential shape of !

the Greenbelt town plan was indicated by nature. Here,

as in many other great plans, the planners' job was primarily

to discover, not invent. . . . the planners of Greenbelt re-

vealed the potentialities of the great curves as a beauti-

ful place for good living.2

auouses encircle the center, where stores, the post office, and community
building/school are located; the apartment buildings form an inner circle.
At a lower level, in a natural bowl, is the athletic field and the re-
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DESCRIPTION, continued

center (the city's recreation department was the first established in
Maryland).

The government initially constructed a total of 574 rowhouse units, 306
apartment units, and five detached homes built as experiments in pre-
fabrication techniques. Ten houses were also built by a private develop-
er in a small subdivision called "Parkbelt" located on Forest Way.

The government purchased a total of 3,371 acres for the community

and surrounding greenbelt.

In 1941 the federal government constructed 1,000 frame homes for workers
engaged in the national defense effort. Greenbelt's "defense homes"
were one of 43 such housing projects built throughout the United

States to relieve the acute shortage of housing for persons engaged

in war-time activities. The frame houses are located mainly to the
north of the original planned community, and their interior design as
well as the layout of the rows was intended to incorporate many of

the plan features of the original homes. However, due to the need

to construct housing quickly and at low cost, the defense homes are

not as well constructed or as well planned as the original community.

The homes, arranged in superblocks to reduce the number of streets,
sidewalks, and utility lines, are clustered in rows in housing "courts",
set back from the main streets, From two to ten homes in a row were
constructed, all with what is called a "garden side" and a "service
side." The service side was planned for access to parking (most

courts have off-street parking lots or garages), and for deliveries

and garbage pick-up, while the garden side was designed to provide

each family with a spacious and safe play and green area. Many homes
face, on the garden side, common areas or small city parks. In some
cases, the garden side faces woods.

Greenbelt's internal walkway system and pedestrian underpasses (the
only ones to be constructed in the three greenbelt towns) are credited
with separating pedestrian and vehicular traffic. Three pedestrian
and underpasses cross Crescent Road and lead to the Commercial Center
and the c¢ity's outstanding safety record is in part accredited to

the use of these. :
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DESCRIPTION, continued

ORIGINAL APARTMENTS

Constructed at the same time as the rest vf 01d Greenbelt were twelve
three~story apartment buildings. Designed for small families and single
persons, the apartments were built near the Center and offered easy
access to Center mall services and activities. 1In summary, apartment
construction was as follows:

Buildings Type Units

1 48 family -- 3-story apartment 48

1 36 family -- 3-story apartment 36

2 21 family -- 3-story apartment 24

2 18 family -- 3-story apartment 36

3 24 family -- 3-story apartment 72

, 3 30 family -- 3-story apartment 90

Total: 306

The apartment buildings were built in the same manner and used the
same materials as the cinder block homes. Today, they are owned by
private rental companies.

THE COMMERCIAL CENTER

Central to the planned community is the Commercial Center. Located
within one-half mile of the original dwellings, the Greenbelt Commercial
Center is one of the oldest planned integrated shopping centers in

the country. It is a neighborhood shopping center because its location
off the main roads is unlikely to draw non-neighborhood business.

Three parking lots and a service road along the front provide vehicular
access to the Center. The Commercial Center is divided by an open

air mall dominated by a mother and child statue sculpted in sandstone
by Lenore Thomas of Accokeet& Maryland , for the Resettlement Adminis-
tration. She also created the reliefs depicting scenes from the Pre-
amble to the Constitution across the front wall of the Center Ele-
mentary School. '

The Commercial Center consists of five buildings containing stores
and offices. In earlier days, the city offices, and police and fire
stations were also housed here. When the Center was opened in 1937,
it was intended to offer residents complete shopping and service
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DESCRIPTION, continued

facilities, including a grocery store, dry cleaners, barber and beauty
shops, bank, and post office. For the first few years, there was even
a furniture store where residents could purchase specially made heavy-
duty furniture; an entire house could be outfitted for $300-$400.

The buildings in the Commercial Center are now privately owned.

CENTER SCHOOL

The two-story community building (now Greenbelt Center Elementary
School) was an integral part of the planned community, and first opened
its doors in October 1937 with seven teachers and 24 students. The
building is centrally located, within a half-mile of all the original
homes, and can be reached directly by a system of paths and walkway--
underpasses. Built as a combination school-community building, the
facility contained 12 classrooms as well as a music room, arts and
crafts workshop, home making room, health room, social room, and a
large combined gymnasisum-auditorium. Architecturally, Center School
shares the simple functional design which dominates the planned
community as a whole.

Until July 1, 1971, the building also housed a library, one of the most
active in Prince George's County. Following much petitioning by Green-
belt citizens, a new library building was constructed by the County

on land next to the school in 1971.

The building was owned by the government and loaned to the county as an
elementary school. 1In 1948 the town leased it from the Public Housing
Department for $1 per year, and in turn received sufficient funds to
operate it. 1In 1953 the building was dedicated by the government to
the City of Greenbelt. 1In 1959 the Community Building was sold to

the Prince George's County Board of Education for $260,000.

In its early years, the Community Building housed the churches on
Sunday and provided recreational facilities during the week. Local
organizations met in the combination auditorium and gymnasium. Class-
rooms were used for adult education and vocational training 'in the
evening. :

It (the school) was to become one of our best-loved
buildings, for it was here that all segments of the
citizenry were to meet, giscuss their mutual problems,
worship, study and play.
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DESCRIPTION, continued

‘"NORTH END ELEMENTARY SCHOOL

The North End Elementary School was constructed to relieve the con-
gestion in the Center School caused by the completion of the 1,000

frame "defense homes" in 1941-1942. Until the additional homes were
constructed, the total number of children attending Center School
averaged around 400. 1In 1943, after the new homes were constructed,
attendance increased to 785 and the school had to go on double sessions.
The two-story building features a simple design and contained ten
classrooms, a kindergarten room, kitchen, imfirmary, offices, and an
auditorium.

JUNIOR HIGH SCHOOL

Originally a junior-senior high school, the structure was begun in
the spring of 1937 and completed some 10 months later at a cost of
$142,000. The school was designed to serve students from the town
of Berwyn Heights, as well, and was placed on the western edge of
Greenbelt, about 1.5 miles from Center Elementary School. A gravel
footpath led from Greenbelt through the woods to the school. The
path crossed Edmonston Road, the only road separating the school
from original Greenbelt, by means of an underpass. This route was
absolutely free from traffic hazards.

The building is basic in design due to a lack of funds at that time.
It contains classrooms, a science room, typing room, study room, music
room, and a lunch room, among others.

In 1949 the County Board of Education purchased the building and land.
The last senior class was graduated in 1951; the school was then
converted to a junior -high school.

GREENBELT LAKE ‘

In 1935, before home construction began, the federal government
began construction of Greenbelt Lake to cover 23 acres of swamp land.
Located to the west of the original town, the project took 200 men

a year to complete, at a total cost of $75,000. The lake and its
shore line are now a city park.
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DESCRIPTION, continued

The swamp was the most heavily wooded spot in the area,
with trees averaging 100 feet in height and 30 inches

in diameter. These were pulled out by the roots and

the stump piles mounted up as high as houses. They burned
for two months or more. Some of the logs were used in
construction work; the rest were turned over to the

county relief board.

It took about one year for the lake to fill, although it is fed by
two streams and innumerable springs along the banks. The overflow
empties into a stream that flows to Indian Creek, a tributary of
which flows into the Anacostia River, eventually reaching the
Potomac.

On November 13, 1936, President Franklin D. Roosevelt placed the

first fish into the lake. Since that time, it has been stocked by

the State of Maryland. Several varieties of wild and domestic ducks
also make their home at the lake. B

Fishing and boating are premitted at the lake. It is also a popular
place for joggers, walkers, bicyclists, and picknickers. The annual
Fourth of July fireworks display attracts thousands of visitors, who
site on the bank and watch the colorful sight. 1In winter, ice skating
is a favorite past-time, if the weather has been cold enough$§.

INDIAN SPRINGS

South of Greenbelt Lake is Indian Springs. It used to be accessible
by walking across the dam at the lake, and then following a woodland
trail between clumps of mountain laurel and wild azalea. The three
springs are in a large open clearing, shaded by tulip poplars. With
construction of the Capital Beltway, the Springs became separated
from the Lake Park. ‘ ‘

Above Indian Springs is the Walker family burial ground. 1Isaac Walker
was a colonel in the American Revolution and is buried here. His son,
who was born here, Colonel Samuel Hamilton Walker, was a hero of the
Texas Rangers in the Mexican-American War and is also noted for
_assisting Samuel Colt in the perfection of the Colt revolver.
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DESCRIPTION, continued

PARCELS 1, 2, 3 and 4

These are four parcels of land on the eastern fringe of the City,
currently owned by private developers, which are part of the original
"green belt" that once surrounded the city. The total acreages of
the parcels are as follows:

Parcel 1 155.5 acres
City park land 42.30 acres
Undeveloped private

parcels 103.24 acres

Undeveloped Prince
George's County land 10.00 acres

Parcel 2 81.0 acres
Prince George's County
land 61.40 acres
City land 9.95 acres
Undeveloped private laid 9.75 acres
Parcel 3 - Undeveloped private land 2.9 acres
Parcel 4 - Undeveloped private land 7.4 acres

THE OPENING OF GREENBELT

In the 30s,the idea of a city protected from over-crowding, sprawling,
and haphazard development built by the federal government for low-
income people was attacked as "radical" and "socialistic". Indeeqd,
after the towns were built, thousands of tourists flocked to.-them

to gawk at the residents, who were depicted as being rigidly controlled
because of the many rules and regulations imposed by the federal admin-
istrators. ' ’

Tagged "Tugwelltowns" by the press and Congress, they were portrayed
as part of a "sinister plot to impose foreign, socialist, or communist
ways of life on the American peogle or at least they forced unwanted
regimentation by being planned." :
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DESCRIPTION, continued

The first residents were carefully selected. They had to meet income
requirements ($800-$2,200 annual), exhibit neat personal habits, present
two references from previous landlords, undergo a physical examination,
and demonstrate their need for rental housing in a new environment.

One factor that eliminated many prospective residents was that the

wives of employed husbands could not work. Attempts were made to
reflect the religious ratio of Washington, D.C.: 63% Protestant,

30% Catholic, and 7% Jewish. One. third were government employees.

Five families moved in on opening day. One year later, all 885
dwellings were occupied. By the end of 1937 Greenbelt was the second
largest municipality in Prince George's County. By 1941 it was the
largest. Today Greenbelt ranks third.

The residents thought of themselves as pioneers. The following article
appeared in the first issue of the Cooperator (Greenbelt's weekly news-
paper, begun in 1937, and still being published by a volunteer staff
under the banner The Greenbelt News Review).

We did not arrive in Greenbelt after long, tiresome
miles by covered wagon; nor did we find this place

by chance. We were not the first to gaze upon this
spot of ground;nor did we cut down trees in order to
build homes. Nor is it necessary to clear the land to
plant our crops that we may quench our thirst.

Yes, we are pioneers--of a new way of living. We are
the sculptors of a new way of living. We are the
sculptors handling the soft, yielding clay of a

new community. What form shall we mold of it?

This project has given most of us an opportunity
we'd never anticipated. We are in the process of
creating homes! Our families and our children
will live under laws of our own making. Only in
our fondest and most youthful dreams have we
imagined such a chance. What will we make of it?
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DESCRIPTION, continued

Let us make good laws--wise laws, and not too many
of them. Let us keep ourselves, our community, our
city government, our ideals, as clean as our new,
windswept roofs. Let us continue ourselves and the
management of our Greenbelt in such a way as to de-
serve the pride with which all America will be look-
ing on.

As strangers to each other in a completely new environment, new
social patterns and group emerged. Greenbelt is unique in that

it is the only one of the three "green" towns to have preserved

the established cooperative concepts, enterprises, and organizations.
Greenbelt Consumer Services, one of the largest consumer cooperatives
on the east coast, developed here. It operated bus lines and a
variety of stores in the shopping mall. Today GCS has consolidated
to include food, furniture, and a gas station. A cooperative

nursery school and the housing cooperative symbolize the Greenbelt
philosophy for community living begun by those "pioneers".

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION

When the new towns were built, architecture was secondary to the
concept of a planned community. Each of the new towns had its own
set of architects and planners. Hale Walker, Harold Bursley, and
Reginald Wadsworth designed Greenbelt and were among those who re-
acted negatively to the ornamentation of the styles of the 30s.
Walker, Bursley, and Wadsworth designed buildings in what was then
called "New Tradition" and now is labeled the "International Style"
of Walter Gropius and the Bauhaus.

The original masonry or block units are flat-roofed cinderblock homes,
painted white with window sash and bands of brick between windows ]
‘painted green.

The brick veneer homes have gable roofs laid with slate; soon after
construction, these were also painted white with green trim. For
many years, no other colors were p itted. Green and white still
represent the city and are the coldérs of the city's flag.

The interiors of the block homes are furred inside the masonry and in-
sulated with plaster board covered with aluminium foil on the outer
surface and plastered on the inner. Floor construction is of rein-
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DESCRIPTION, continued

forced concrete on which asphalt tile is laid with mastic. The roof
is covered with four-ply roofing laid in pitch and surfaced with
slag or gravel. Windows are steel casements with wood doors and
trim.

The brick homes are constructed of brick veneer with diagonal sheath-
ing and rock wool insulation between the studs. The tenor is finish-
ed with plaster on metal lath. The lower floor is reinforced concrete
slab, while upper floors are of wood. The concrete floor is covered
with asphalt tile. Thin layers of slate are laid over wood sheathing
to form the roof. Shrubbery, particularly private hedges, were part
of each home's landscape design.

A typical brick or block home has a living room, dining room, and
kitchen on the first floor, and 2-3 bedrooms upstairs. There are

16 one-bedroom homes, called honeymoon cottages, on the first floor
ends of some masonry rows. Twenty-two masonry homes have finished
basements. Some of these have asbestos shingles covering the masonry
surface.

The "defense" homes were built with one, two, or three bedrooms.
Kitchens face the service side while living rooms face woods or

parks. Asbestos shingles cover the exterior of the homes. Wood floor-
ing and dry wall were used in the interiors and wood frame push-up
windows throughout. Because of the speed with which they were con-
structed during World War II and the lack of materials and funds
committed to the project, the frame units have galvanized steel

piping instead of the copper used in the masonry, and lack the sound
insulation and landscaping features of the original homes.

One bedroom frame homes are located on the first and second floor ends
of some buildings; eight buildings are completely composed of one-
bedroom units on each of the two floors, with 8 to 12 units in a row.
In addition 104 units of two-story apartments were constructed.

The Greenbelt Historic District contains approximately 360 buildings of which
nearly 90% date from the 1935-1941 period when the district achieved its major
~ significance.
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DESCRIPTION, continued

'EXPERIMENTAL HOUSES

As an experiment in prefabricated housing, the Suburban Division of
the Resettlement Administration included in Greenbelt five experimentgl
freestanding houses, which were located in the northern area of the city.

These houses demonstrated certain possibilities of using plywood as a
structural material. The dead weight was greatly reduced, and there
were fewer parts involved, since the basic construction unit was a
large plywood panel, constructed earlier and brought to the site
whole. Theg plywood was glued to the studs and joists to form simple
boxlike structural units in which the plywood provides most of the
strength and stiffness.

All five units are one-story, two-bedroom structures with sample plans
indicated below. They were constructed on an area of about 40,000 '
square feet for a total cost of $6,600 or an average cost of $1,320
per house. They contain the following total area measurements:

House Total Area (Sqg. Ft.)
A 994
B 994
Cc 999
D 658
E 716

A WORD ON REHABILITATION

Because the original housing is now 42 years old and the remainder

is 38 years old, Greenbelt Homes, Inc., the owner of most of the -
residential property, is.now in the planning stages for a comprehensive
rehabilitation program. First priority in this program is directed
towards energy conservation as these houses and their heating systems
are energy inefficient. Greater use of electrical appliances over the
past 40 years and advanced age has resulted in the need for consider-
able electrical wiring work to be done. A thorough examination of
wooden structures is required to determine the extent of damage from

age, rot, termites, etc. To do this, the exterior asbestos shingle
siding needs to be removed.
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DESCRIPTION, continued

In undertaking rehabilitation, the cooperative is ever mindful of the
need to achieve results that will assure the continuation of these

buildings as moderate priced houses. Thus, consideration is being E
given to ways and means of reduéing maintenance costs as well as re-
pPlacing deteriorated or inadequate fixtures and structural sections.

While most rehabilitation work will be within the buildings, new
windows and exterior siding are being considered for many of the
buildings. New window units will have built-in storm windows and
provide tight seals.
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Greenbelt, 25th Anniversary, 1937-1962 (Brochure prepared under the
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government organizations), p. 42.

5
Joseph Arnold, The New Deal in the Suburbs, A History of the Greenbelt
Town Program, 1935-1954. Ohio State University Press. 1971. pp.196-197.

6
Ibid., p. 197.

7
Greenbelt, 25th Anniversary, p. 12
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Period Areas of Significance—Check and justify below

— prehistoric _ archeology-prehistoric _X_community planning ____ landscape architecture____ religion

—— 1400-1499 ___ archeology-historic —_conservation — law — science

——1500-1599 ___ agriculture —___ economics — literature — sculpture

—_1600-1699 _yx_architecture — education —— military - social/

——1700-1799 ___ art —— engineering —— music humanitarian

—1800-1899 __ commerce — exploration/settlement ___ philosophy — theater

—X_ 1900~ —__ communications — industry X _politics/government _ transportation -

—_ invention —— other (specity)

Specific dates 1935-1941 Builder/Architect Reginald J. Wadsworth and Douglas D.
. . Ellington, principal architects

Statement of Significance (in one paragraph) Harold Bursley, engineering designer

SIGNIFICANCE

The Greenbelt Historic District is the original developed section of the City of
Greenbelt which was established and expanded between 1935 and 1941 as one of three "green
towns" founded by the United States govermment under the New Deal as an attempt to solve
social and economic problems confronting the nation. The three towns are Greenbelt,
Maryland; Greenhills, Ohio (near Cincinnati); and Greendale, Wisconsin (near Milwaukee).
A fouth community, Greenbrook, New Jersey, never passed the planning stage. Greenbelt
differs from the other "green towns" in that the predaminate type of building originally
erected is the multi-storied apartment house whereas the duplex is the predominate type
originally used in the other communities. Of the three towns, Greenbelt is the only one
to still retain many of the original@ features such as the buildings and sections of
the surrounding "greenbelt." Greenbelt also continues the concept of community
responsibility as the majority of the housing is owned by a cooperative. -

AISTORY ‘AND SUPPORT

The idea of a planned "green town" can be traced to the late 19th century in Great Britain
when Ebenezer Howard detailed such planning ideas in a book entitled Garden Cities of
Tomorrow published in 1898. Howard presented the idea of a "garden town" surrounded by .
large open spaces maintained by the residents. Two such cities were built in England

in the early twentieth century. 1In the United States a private developer began
construction in 1928 of Radburn, New Jersey, a garden town outside New York City, but

the Great Depression halted construction in the early 1930s. Radburn was considered at
the time to be the model American "green town."

Although it smothered Radburn, the Depression was, in many ways, responsible for the
creation of the New Deal efforts that built Greenbelt and the other "green towns" in the
late 1930s. In 1935 the director of the Rural Resettlement Administration, later the
Division of Farm Security in the Department of Agriculture, was the late Rexford Guy
Tugwell, a disciple of Howard's garden city philosophy. He convinced President Roosevelt
that the basic planning concepts of the green town were valid and plans were laid for
four "green towns" as a method of combatting unemploymnet and to move low—income families
out of overcrowded urban areas while keeping them close to opportunities in the city.

See continuation sheet number 14
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HISTORY, Continued

O0f the three towns that were finally built, Greenbelt carried out the
Radburn idea more than the other two. Low and moderate income families
predominated. The rowhouse residents.formed a housing cooperative

(an idea not before employed in green towns) in 1953 when the federal
government divested itself of its housing interests. That coopera-
tive thrives today, as do many of the ancillary cooperative insti-
tutions, including the newspaper, nursery school, garden club, baby-
sitting club, and Greenbelt Consumer Services, which runs the large
grocery store in the Center.

Approximately 40 of the original residents still live in Greenbelt,
Many children, grandchildren, and other relatives of original settlers
chose to make Greenbelt their home.

Greenbelt has successfully demonstrated the neighborhood concept radiat-
ing into a garden city. Two recently'completed planned communities—-
Reston, Virginia and Columbia, Maryland-- have eXpanded on the
successful elements of Greenbelt. _

Because Greenbelt was planned as a viable, living community, it

should change with the times and not become solely a representative

of a former time. However, those planning concepts which made

Greenbelt significant when it was first built and which remain

viable today should be preserved for the future. These planning
concepts include:

Moderate priced housing in a garden or park setting;

Cluster housing;

Superblocks with interior green space;

Interior sidewalk system which crosses under major

streets to underpasses;

* A central core of commercial, civic, recreational,
athletic, and park facilities;

* A surrounding belt of open space.

* * % %

NOTE: Further history can be found in the description.
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ACREAGE AND BOUNDARY JUSTIFICATION conintued

\

city. These undeveloped parcels, known as Parcels 1, 2, 3, and 4 and i_arivat.:el'l.y
owned, are considered as part of the district because they reflect their original
purpose of being a natural buffer zone encircling the community.

PHOTOGRAPH EXPLANATORY NOTE
The photographs submitted as part of the documentation for this application,
though varied in date with some more than four years in age, do visually

represent the Greenbelt Historic District as it appears as of the date of this
application. ; o
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GEOGRAPHICAL DATA

BELTSVILLE QUADRANGLE

Greenbelt Historic District '

D. 18/335610/4318530
E. 18/337210/4319840

Greenbelt Cemetery
A. 18/336100/4319340
. 18/336060/4319200

18/335940/4319270

B
C.
D. 18/335990/4319390

Greenbelt Junior High School

D. 18/335160/4318360

LANHAM QUADRANGLE--No UTM point(s)

LAUREL QUADRANGLE

Greenbelt Historic District
A. 18/338910/4319830
B. 18/338320/4318300

WASHINGTON EAST QUADRANGLE -

r

Greenbelt Historic District City Park

C. 18/337300/4317770 A, 18/336120/4318200’
Greenbelt_Junior High School B. 18/335820/4318190
A. 18/335440/4318220 C. 18/335890/4318390

B. 18/335310/4317860
C. 18/334900/4317960
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Seée continuation page 17

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of nominated property 789,05 acres
Quadrangle name ___Washington East, Beltsville, Quadrangle scale 1324000
UMT References Lanham and Laurel Quadrangle Maps

(SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #18.)

B
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Verbal boundary description and justification
The boundaries of the Greenbelt Historic District are indicated by the wide red line .,
drawn on the accompanying mape labeled "City of Greenbelt/Prince George's County/ Maryland
drawn to a scale of 1"=500"' and prepared in 1964 and revised in 1980.

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries

state code county code

state " code county code

11. Form Prepared By

name/titie Thomas Hauenstein
Organization ... .. City of Greenbelt - —. -.- .. date” November 1979 — — — = -—-
street & number 25 Crescent Road . telephone (301) 474-8000
city or town Greenbelt  sete  Maryland 20770

12. State Historic Preservation Officer Certification

The evaluated significance of this property within the state is:

--X_ national —_ state —— local

State Historic Preservation Officer signature - 5- ’27'@
title STATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION date
| For HCRS use only, -t vl TR o ke e fm A E —
I hereby certity that this property Is included in méﬁwoqal Register - v e
’ E Tt P S ST S &
-seeper of the National Register. -~ SR
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